

AspenPark Homeowner's Association Bylaws

<http://aspenpark.org/ap/aphabylaws.htm>

AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS OF ASPENPARK HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

On this 2nd day of March, 1993, the undersigned, being the duly elected President and Secretary of AspenPark Homeowners Association, Inc. on Oklahoma non-profit corporation, formed under the laws of the State of Oklahoma, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", and with the intent of amending the Bylaws of the Association executed on the 2nd day of March, 1993 do hereby state as follows:

That on the 2nd day of March, 1993, a special meeting of the members of the Association was held whereby it was agreed by a three-fourths (3/4) vote in accordance with Article VIII of the Bylaws of AspenPark Homeowners Association, Inc. be amended to read as follows, to wit:

Article I

The name of the Association is ASPENPARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

The mailing address is:

City of Broken Arrow
County of Tulsa
State of Oklahoma

Article II

Purpose, Object and Nature of the Association

- A. To promote and carry on activities for the protection and betterment of the general welfare of the community, particularly the members and their domiciles, and to promote the adequacy of, or improvements to, utilities, parkways, recreational areas, gateways, unimproved lots, plots and other areas contributing to the good order, value and aesthetics of the community.
- B. To exercise any and all power that may be delegated to it from time to time by the owners of real property in the tract and which are accepted by the Association.

The objects and purposes specified in the foregoing clauses

shall in no way be limited or restricted by reference to or interference from the terms of any other clause in these Bylaws, but the objects and purposes specified in each of the foregoing clauses of the Bylaws shall be regarded as independent purposes and objectives.

Article III

Membership

- A. All adults residing in AspenPark Addition are eligible to become members of the Association.
- B. All members shall pay a non-refundable yearly fee as set by a majority vote of the members of the Association. In instances when a member's house is sold, the membership fee will transfer to the new owner. Fees will be prorated quarterly for families just moving into the Addition.
- C. Members have the right to participate in any discussion of issues at the Board meetings or special meetings of the Association.
- D. All members have an equal right to elective office in this Association and appointment to committees.
- E. Annual membership dues are payable May 1 of each year, with the fiscal year starting May 1 and running through April 30 of the following year.

Article IV

Meetings

- A. An annual meeting of the voting members shall be held during the month of April for the purpose of electing officers and directors and for the transaction of other business as may be necessary.
- B. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board.
- C. Special, general membership, or Board meetings may be called by the President or upon written request by a majority of the Board members.
- D. The order of business for this organization shall be conducted as follows:
 - 1. Call meeting to order;
 - 2. Read, correct and approve minutes of last meeting;

3. Report of the Treasurer;
 4. Reports of officers, standing and/or special committees;
 5. Conduct old or unfinished business;
 6. Conduct new business;
 7. Adjourn meeting;
- E. Notice of the annual Association meetings of the membership shall be delivered to the membership not less than five days prior to such meeting.

Article V

Officers and Committees

- A. Any officer or director must be a member of the Association.
- B. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association. He/she shall appoint all committees with the consent of the Board; shall interpret all rules of parliamentary procedure and conduct meetings in an efficient manner; shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, with the right to participate in debate and to vote; shall ensure that all decisions of the organization are carried out.
- C. The Vice-President shall act as President of meetings in the absence of the President and shall act as coordinator of the work of all block captains and committees and in carrying out the purpose and function of each committee.
- D. The Treasurer shall collect all dues and keep a written record of each collection; shall keep a record of all expenditures and provide a written financial report at each meeting; shall disburse funds as directed by the Board; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the members at the regular annual meeting of the Association, and deliver a copy of each to the members.
- E. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of this organization; shall also keep an up-to-date list of members; shall read the minutes of any previous meetings at the request of the President at any meeting of this organization; shall receive all correspondence and convey its contents to the Board and make replies to such correspondence as may be required or as directed by the Board.
- F. The President or Treasurer may approve the issuance of the Association checks. The signature of both of these officers is required. Notwithstanding other provisions of

these Bylaws, the President and Treasurer may expend funds without prior approval of the Board in an amount not to exceed the limit set by the Board.

- G. Those positions described in paragraphs B through E of Article III shall also server as directors.
- H. Directors shall attend Board meetings; shall be responsible for representing the membership in all voting matters; and shall have the right to initiate any new business to be considered by the Board of Directors.
- I. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by a majority vote of the Board.

Article VI

Election of Officers and Board of Directors

- A. Directors and officers shall serve a one-year term or until their successors are elected. There is no limit to the number of terms Directors or Officers may hold.
- B. The Board of Directors shall be comprised of a minimum of seven members.
- C. The President may appoint a nominating committee of at least three members. This committee may be comprised of Board and non-Board members and shall be responsible for accepting nominations from the membership and presenting them at the annual meeting. Nominations will also be accepted from the floor at the annual meeting.
- D. Vacancy by a Board member because of death, illness, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise may be filled by a majority vote of the Board members for the unexpired portion of the vacant member's term.
- E. Only one officer or director shall be allowed per household at any one time.
- F. The person receiving the most votes for each office shall be elected to that office. The three Board members receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected Board members. Each voting member shall vote for three separate Board member candidates.

Article VII

Indemnification of Officers, Directors, Employees and Agents

To the extent and in the manner permitted by the laws of the

State of Oklahoma and specifically as is permitted under Section 1031 of Title 18 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including attorney's fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement.

Article VIII

Voting

- A. All voting on Association issues may be either by secret ballot or a show of hands.
- B. Each adult member present is allowed one vote, with a maximum of two votes per household. Absentee voting may be done by a proxy statement signed by a member and presented to any Board member.
- C. A majority of Board members present at a Board meeting may conduct normal business. A quorum of the Board shall be a majority of the active Board members.

Article IX

Amendments

- A. These Bylaws may be altered or repealed or new Bylaws may be adopted by a three-fourths (3/4) vote of the membership attending any annual or special meeting duly convened after notice to the membership setting forth the purpose of the meeting.

Article X

Committees

- A. In addition to the Nominating Committee, the Board of Directors may appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose. These committees shall have and may exercise the powers of the Board in the

prosecution of the affairs of the committee, so long as the law allows and to the extent that such resolutions or these Bylaws permit.

- B. The Chairperson of each committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and shall be an advisor to the Board on matters pertinent to the committee's affairs and may attend meetings of the Board at the discretion of the Board. Each such committee shall keep and record all of its acts and proceedings and report the same.
- C. Meetings of any such committee shall be held at such times and places as shall be fixed by a majority of the committee.
- D. The Board of Directors shall have the power at any time to change the Chairperson or members of any such committee and to fill vacancies in and discharge any such committee, either with or without cause.
- E. The Membership Committee shall be comprised of Association members to provide convenient contact with new homeowners, to furnish information and to answer any question the new owners might have, and to make sure they have a copy of the restrictive covenants. Additionally, it shall be the responsibility of this committee to obtain the correct names and addresses of all new members. This committee shall also be ready to assist the Association Secretary upon request. The Secretary shall be a member of this committee.
- F. The Restrictive Covenants Committee shall be responsible for answering any questions the homeowners may have regarding restrictive covenants. They shall have the responsibility of screening all building plans and notifying the builders involved of any violations as apply to the restrictive covenants. The committee shall also be responsible for acting upon all complaints and violations of the restrictive covenants and for acting under the authority of the Executive Board for the purpose of correcting the violations. Complaints shall be presented in written form to any Board member. All complaints must be signed, and a written response as to the action taken will be given by the Board within 45 days. It shall be the Board's authority to take whatever action it deems appropriate concerning each complaint. In whatever action taken, the Board will hold the complaintant's name in confidence. In addition, at least one Board member must be a member of this committee.
- G. The Beautification Committee shall be responsible for managing the operation and maintenance of all common grounds, such as the creek, all streets, easements, entrances into the development and/or any other areas that may be considered common elements of AspenPark. In

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County and State, on this 20th day of April, 1992, personally appeared Gerald W Ellen, to me known to be the identical person who subscribed the name of the Maker thereof to the forgoing Amendment to the Bylaws of AspenPark Homeowners Association, Inc., as its current President, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same as his free and voluntary act and deed as the free and voluntary act and deed of such corporation, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and seal of office the day and year last above written.

My Commission Expires:
6-3-93

(Elizabeth A Taylor)
Notary Public

bdj